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Consolidated Income Statement

= AL YA
172 N = l‘l&ﬁ
(Year ended 31 March 2014)
(BE=Z-—MNF=A=1+—HILFE)

Notes 2014 2013
M5 —E-mE —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET
(restated)
(&£E7)
REVENUE EEIA 5 1,483,774 1,443,994
Cost of sales SHER AR (1,289,041) (1,194,374)
Gross profit ES] 194,733 249,620
Other income Hablg A 5 4,452 4,607
Selling and distribution expenses HEN D HERA (21,526) (16,692)
Administrative expenses TR (135,425) (136,690)
Finance costs & A 6 (5,002) (6,239)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B AT A 7 37,232 94,606
Income tax expense FriSEifa sz 10 (15,362) (21,568)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE RNTEEAEGEFERF
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11 21,870 73,038
HK cents HK cents
AL g Il
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ANTHEE AL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY SREF 13
Basic HAR 4.4 146
Diluted e 4.4 14.6

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

I B EHIE BN I MR M 12 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
memEiamk

(Year ended 31 March 2014)
(BE=Z-—MF=A=1+—HIFE)

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(#&=51)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEF 21,870 73,038
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htp2mEmWE ()
INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) not to be REZEBE T EHSD iﬁzﬁﬁéﬁ’\]
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hibamiss(XH)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan %E%Eafﬂlﬁguz*ig/ﬁﬁﬂ/(Eﬁ?éi) 1,130 (169)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) may be REZHRE A &5 \*EETEE/\LE’\]
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hib2mikzs, (i)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign e i%%ﬁztﬂﬁéﬁ
operations 13,409 (10,300)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR FEHh2EUkzE,(ZH)
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B MkRBE) 14,539 (10,469)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARARBEEAEEFE
FOR THE YEAR AND ATTRIBUTABLE HERSEEE

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 36,409 62,569
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

(31 March 2014)
(Z2—mE=A=+—1)

Notes 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 1 April 2012
—ZT—NF —E—=F —T—F
PiEE =A=+—H —A=+—H mA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
(restated) (restated)
(#&=51) (&eE3)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N&E 14 755,797 792,004 768,898
Prepaid land lease payments A T ERIR 15 74,678 76,129 78,470
Deposits b - - 10,679
Goodwill R 17 26,112 26,112 26,112
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 856,587 894,245 884,159
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories w8 19 260,275 229,730 244,961
Accounts and bills receivables FEUR BR 31 K 2= 20 134,263 184,004 141,955
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - e Rk
receivables H i fE U 018 16 27,862 22317 34,131
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EMEEE 21 276,565 309,352 371,986
Total current assets MENEERE 698,965 745,403 793,033
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts and bills payables ERERREE 22 96,112 108,820 103,364
Accrued liabilities and other payables fE&T & 18 M EL b e 30IR 24 81,366 96,469 80,845
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRMRITERK 25 339,620 387,646 418,896
Tax payable FERTTRIR 9,538 14,703 29,626
Total current liabilities BB ERE 526,636 607,638 632,731
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEEESE 172,329 137,765 160,302
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERENRABHERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,028,916 1,032,010 1,044,461
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREAE
Pension scheme obligation BINGETEIEE 26 2,425 2,578 531
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEAR 27 14,574 13,950 21,061
Total non-current liabilities ErRBBEEE 16,999 16,528 21,592
Net assets BEZE 1,011,917 1,015,482 1,022,869
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners AATER AELER
of the Company
Issued capital BETAR A 28 4,997 4,997 4,997
Reserves & 30 1,006,920 1,010,485 1,017,872
Total equity BREE 1,011,917 1,015,482 1,022,869
CHUNG YUK SING CHEN HSIAO YING
EEF B/
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

nV_F * i m 3 5 Eb %:Z

(Year ended 31 March 2014)
(BE-Z—NOF=A=1+—HILFHE)

Share Statutory  Exchange Asset
Issued premium Capital surplus  fluctuation revaluation Retained
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
[BE:<i) R EE Ex BE
izt BA wER EARE  BHEE  RBRE  EGEE  9RER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FET FEL FET FEL FET
(Note 30) (Note 30)
(PzE30)  (PzE30)
At 1 April 2012
As previously reported 4997 472,586 (229) 17535 112,148 46,521 415,304 1,068,862
Prior year adjustment 22 - - - - (3,860) (46,521) 4388 (45,993)
As restated 4997 472,586* (2297 17,535* 108,283* -+ 419,692* 1,022,869
Profit for the year (restated) = = = = = = 73038 73,038
Other comprehensive income
for the year:
Actuarial loss on defined benefit E%’E%ﬁ‘ BE R
plan (restated) - - - - - - (169) (169)
Exchange differences on translation T E/GINER 2
of foreign operations (restated) - - - - (10,300) - - (10,300)
Total comprehensive income
for the year (restated) - - - - (10,300) - 72,869 62,569
Transfer to reserve - - - 16213 - - (16,213)
Final 2012 dividend declared BER-Z-—_ERERE 1 - - - - - - (34978) (34978)
Interim 2013 dividend “2-ZERERE 12 - - - - - - (34978) (34,978)
At 31 March 2013 “E-—=F=-fA=1—-H 4997 472,586 (229 33,748* 97,988* -* 406392 1015482
A1 April 2013
As previously reported 4997 472,586 (229) 33,748 102,142 127,136 402,099 1,142479
Prior year adjustment 22 - - - - (4,154) (127,136) 4293 (126997)
As restated 4997 472,586 (229) 33,748 97,988 = 406,392 1,015482
Profit for the year - - - - - - 21,870 21870
Other comprehensive income
for the year:
Actuarial gain on defined ERBHEIRERT
benefit plan - - - - - - 1,130 1,130
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - 13,409 - - 13409
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 13,409 - 23,000 36,409
Transfer to reserve - - - 3,980 - - (3,980)
Final 2013 dividend declared 12 - - - - - - (19,987) (19,987)
Interim 2014 dividend “T-mERERS 12 - - - - = = (19987) (19987)
At 31 March 2014 4997 472,586* (229* 37,728% 111,397% -* 385,438* 1011917
o These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,006,920,000  * ZEREREREINGE MBIRRRNERE G

(31 March 2013: HK$1,010,485,000 (restated) and 1 April 2012: HK$1,017,872,000
(restated)) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

1%1,0069200008 T (=T —=F=A=+—8H :
1,010,4850008 T (EEH) R =T ——FWA—AH :
1,017,872,0007 7T (K2 E51)) )
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

VAAN é\‘t = %%
wh 3 ‘ILE: N7 J)ILER
(Year ended 31 March 2014)
(BE=Z-—MNF=A=1+—HILFE)

Notes 2014 2013
k=3 —E-ImF ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
(restated)
(#=E35)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EE(KELCEHERE
Profit before tax R Al g A 37,232 94,606
Adjustments for; RATIER #%
Finance costs BhE A 6 5,002 6,239
Bank interest income ERITRLEMA 5 (1,417) (2:897)
Write-off of items of property, plant and W - BER
equipment HEEE 2,458 =
Depreciation e 61,856 59,910
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEAS A b 0 & SR IE B 8 2,368 2,327
107,499 160,185
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R /(8Gm) (30,545) 15,231
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and bills FEURBR TR R E i
receivables B, (480) 49,741 (42,049)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FBRNFE -~ e MNEMEY
deposits and other receivables IR (38h0) (5,519) 11,828
Increase/(decrease) in accounts FESBRF K =R
and bills payables #an O ) (12,708) 5456
Increase/(decrease) in accrued JEETAE R MmN FRIE
liabilities and other payables #n, O ) (15,103) 15,624
Increase in pension scheme liabilities RIREETEI B EIGN 1,363 1,849
Cash generated from operations SEELVIRS 94,728 168,124
Interest paid 2RFLE (5,002) (6,239)
Dividends paid ERRE (39,974) (69,956)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREENFH (12,303) (27,753)
Overseas tax paid BEINRIA (7,711) (15,849)
Net cash flows from operating activities RELEEB RS REFE 29,738 48,327
CASH FLOWS USED IN ARREEB 2 RERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE « BKEREHEER
property, plant and equipment, net S s IESE 454 =
Purchases of items of property, plant and HEME  BEX
equipment HEIEE (20,509) (79,637)
Decrease in non-pledged deposits with BARERHABA=EA
original maturity of over three months 2 SEE T ROR
when acquired = 30,162
Interest received BHFE 1,417 2,897
Net cash flows used in investing activities AREE RS 2 ReREFE (18,638) (46,578)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

n‘l-ﬁ fﬁﬁ/)lb%%(?ﬁg)

(Year ended 31 March 2014)
(BE=Z-—NF=A=1+—HI1FE)

Notes 2014 2013
o —E—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
(restated)
(#e=E=5)

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITY BRBIEEBHERE
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (48,026) (31,250)
Net cash flows used in financing activity ARma s RensEFE (48,026) (31,250)
NET DECREASE IN CASH ReRBRLEEER

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B FEE (36,926) (29,501)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E?}]Zﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ | 309,352 341,824
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXREE v FEFE 4,139 (2,971)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FR7BESREESEEER

AT END OF YEAR 276,565 309,352
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEHEEBZ

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERR DA
Cash and bank balances Be NIRRT 21 275,316 299,282
Non-pledged time deposits with original BAREREH

maturity of less than three months PR=@AZ

when acquired IEEHEAER 21 1,249 10,070
Cash and cash equivalents HekHSEAEEHR 276,565 309,352

61,.f
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Statement of Financial Position

B REAR L R

(31 March 2014)
(Z2—mE=A=+—1)

Notes 2014 2013
M5 —ET-mEF —E—=fF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZRE 18 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Due from subsidiaries R NG E e 18 1,048,216 1,048,576
Loan to a subsidiary HBTHBRRZER 18 218,400 234,000
Prepayments SEANE S 16 105 137
Cash and cash equivalents R RFSEAEEHR 21 623 10618
Total current assets mBEEMAE 1,267,344 1,293,331
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Due to subsidiaries FERTI B A RIFUE 18 453,188 424,023
Accrued liabilities EErEaE 24 7 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT ERITIER 25 217,224 234,000
Tax payable e FRTE 1,322 903
Total current liabilities BB B4R 671,741 658,926
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 595,603 634,405
Net assets BESE 638,971 677,773
EQUITY B
Issued capital BEITIRA 28 4,997 4,997
Reserves G 30 633,974 672,776
Total equity BARLE 638,971 677,773
CHUNG YUK SING CHEN HSIAO YING
#EEH BR/Ng
Director Director
EF EZE
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Notes to Financial Statements
S ey R

(31 March 2014)
(Z2—mE=A=+—1)

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower B,
Regent Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Group's principal activities are the manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1

NAEEHR
RARARIRRAEHRETMKILZBR
AR o AR A FE S R b ik /S Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands ° 282
Al EBEEMB N E AT AL RITE
FFET7055% BB & 0 BEE FLHE0902-0903 2 K2
0905-0906 % °

REBZITBEBREEREREEHRE
PR

w22
HEMBRRDVREABLSEHMAE
B2 BEMBHREERN(TEEMBER
SEA ) (AP BEMAEEEMEREE
8] - BEGTEN(FBEFER ) K
B) BALREGFTRAUEEE R BED
ZEBERERD] o WEMBHRRBIBESL
RAERmS o BRABEAIN - MEEHEK
BUAET(ET]) 25 - MAAEESN
BAAEKRI 2T

REEE
HEMBRRBEARTDREME QA
(B AEEBE_F-—EF=A
St ALEFEZHBHREK - MELQF
mEARREBENTERE - AN
BETBREARBAAENEN - HEAR
ZEBEABASERGIEHIEZ AEES
AHE - WERRBENER LAMERSAF
A °

ARBFA AR R g R R R
KEMEEKEEAKID - BIfE R L3
BOFERBREREHR R BB - KE
EREARIZERZMEENEEANRLE
ELBE s B SHRRERE
BEHFAKRE RN -

HEERBERBER T XMBAREEER
PRty =R E R 2 — R Z R LR E
B AREEEMTHERSEHREE
PNCIRNGIEVNSIENIRSE 3§38 32100 %-)
REEGIE) - HERIHAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IR AL ()

(31 March 2014)

(Z2—mFE=A=+—H)

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

(i

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 10, HKFRS

11 and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets — Recoverable Amount Disclosures

for Non-Financial Assets (early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in June 2012

2.1

2.2

mEEE )

mEEE )
HAEBMEAEHEWB AR 2= H#E - 8l
FGEROVZMBRARZEBE (BEBRE)
RBE ()T RERS 2 REE &
(iFt AtEm 2 RFTER =5 RIERI)E
WREZAFE  (VEAMREBIREZ AT
B KN R I E i EE 2 Bk
HEIE - AR EMEERERER ZA
EEELSNEFT DB AIBRNEEEF
(EmA) - AEECEEREREEE
s B ERIZE R —EAERER -

SRR ESE

(i) AEEBRAFEHBRER SN
AT #E] RIRIERT BB S MG L

A o
BAMBHRE  BEVBESEUFN
e BAIENERZENF

&7 HEEL-BATRHN

EAMBHE  BRMBRSEANER
RAETH: BR2BIA  RE
&7 —BHTREER

EHEE

BEUBRE  FAUEFL
KERIF 105
BHMBRE LSBT
ERIENH

op

BEMBRE  ABEAMEEER
BRI 125%

BAM SRS B REER
ERIE 108 - F105% - BAUE
BEGBRE REEBENHER
ERENHER BANTHREER
AN ERE EAVEHCHR )
ERIF SRR #5

ERUHRE AFEE
ERIF 135

EAG AR BAEGTERNE BT
AL H] HEHZNZ5 A

2EYRBEHES

EAGHER ESREF
1957(2011)

BEGIER  BUUBHE
E2757(2011)

ERQHEN  REELRRAELA
285%011) HIRE

EAGTHER BB e RHERE 365
F365R (8] EIEERE- 28

EEWEIE 5
RERTHRM)

EE(BREBRE BXBLELRY
#EZE9) AFRE
—ZEBE0R
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI AL ()

(31 March 2014)

(ZE—mFE=A=+—H)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(Continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact

of HKFRS 10, amendment to HKAS 1 and HKAS 19 (2011),

the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.

(i

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements and addresses the issues in HK(SIC) - Int
12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It establishes
a single control model used for determining which
entities are consolidated. To meet the definition of
control in HKFRS 10, an investor must have (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c)
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
the amount of the investor’s returns. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the
Group to exercise significant judgement to determine
which entities are controlled.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect to
determining which investees are controlled by the
Group. The application of HKFRS 10 does not change
any of the consolidation conclusions of the Group in
respect of its involvement with investees as at 1 April
2013.

22 EBHEREESH e

(i)

(&)
BRTE— BB EEEENE
WELREI09 - BAEG TR
FVRIEFT RBB LT ERNE 195
Q01N Z FZHN « IRIMFTRT RS
R BB RS ERE R ET R
R BERVIETE -

RNz SR MERT BB 5
SEAZETEZENT

(a) BAEMBHREELE 105
BB ERIFE275%
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RAEMBREZ AR ZE
D INREEE(BBR
BRE®) REFENSF
B FHANERREZ
MR8 o B FAREE A
AEBRBZE EHER -
ABREERVBKREER
FIEERIEH 2 EE -
WER R DB =HIZAE -
QIEEFAHWREFTT
FEH - REFESH
WIRE R 2 ¥ EBRE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B RS R AR Y

(31 March 2014)

(Z2—mFE=A=+—H)

1 (%)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(i

(Continued)
(b)

(c)

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in other comprehensive income
("OCI"). Items that could be reclassified (or recycled)
to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example,
exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges
and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial
assets) are presented separately from items which
will never be reclassified (for example, the revaluation
of land and buildings). The amendments have
affected the presentation only and have had no
impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group. In addition, the Group has chosen not
to use the new title “statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income” as introduced by the
amendments in these financial statements.

HKAS 19 (2011) changes the accounting for defined
benefit plans. The revised standard removes
the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial
gains and losses. All actuarial gains and losses are
required to be recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). The interest cost and
expected return on plan assets used in the previous
version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a net interest
amount under HKAS 19 (2011), which is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset at the start of each annual
reporting period. Prior to the adoption of HKAS 19
(2011), the Group elected to recognise actuarial gains
or losses as income or expense over the expected
average remaining service periods of the employees
participating in the defined benefit plan when the net
cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains or losses for
the plan at the end of the previous period exceeded
10% of the higher of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets
at that date. Upon the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011),
all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in OCI
immediately. As a result, all deferred actuarial gains
and losses as at 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 were
recognised in OCl and the actuarial losses recognised
in the income statement for the year ended 31 March
2013 were adjusted to OCl. In addition, the interest
cost and expected return on plan assets recorded in
2013 have been replaced by a net interest amount.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B RS R AR P

(31 March 2014)

(ZE—mFE=A=+—H)

1 (%)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

Furthermore, upon the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011),
all past service costs are recognised at the earlier of
when an amendment/curtailment occurs and when
the related restructuring or termination costs are
recognised. As a result, unvested past service costs
can no longer be deferred and recognised over the
future vesting period. Since the Group did not have
unrecognised service costs as at 1 April 2012 and 31
March 2013, the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011) has had
no financial impact on the past services costs. HKAS
19 (2011) also requires more extensive disclosures
which are included in note 26 to the financial
statements.

Other than the changes to the accounting for defined
benefit plan, HKAS 19 (2011) also changes the
timing of recognition for termination benefits and
the classification of short term employee benefits.
The revised standard requires termination benefits
outside of a wider restructuring to be recognised
only when the offer becomes legally binding and
cannot be withdrawn. Under the revised standard,
the distinction between short term and other
long term employee benefits is now based on the
expected timing of settlement rather than employee
entitlement. As the Group does not have any other
significant employee benefits that are expected to
be settled for more than twelve months after the
reporting period or had no events giving rise to
termination benefits, the changes to the accounting
for these benefits have had no effect on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

22 EBHEREESH e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B ek By et ()
(31 March 2014)
(ZZ—mE=A=+—H)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(i) (Continued)
(c) (Continued)
The effects of the changes to the accounting for the
Group's defined benefit plan are summarised below:

Consolidated income statement

22 EBEERREEZ5 s

(i)

(#8)
(c) (&
G EARDYEALET
B AEH & 2 B an
™
meEkaE
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
BE-Z—NFE BEZZT—=F
=B=+—H —A=+—H

LFE EFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Increase in costs of sales SHE P3SN (1,161) (1,508)
Increase in administrative expenses GG (202) (341)
Decrease in profit for the year attributable KARER ANEEFE
to owners of the Company g AR A (1,363) (1,849)
Decrease in earnings per share attributable N2 &% B AFE(L
to owners of the Company HRRAFEH L
Basic i (HKO.3 cent) (HK0.4 cent)
(0.33841L) 0.47%4)
Diluted s (HKO.3 cent) (HKO0.4 cent)

(0.3581l) (0471l
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B RS R AR P

(31 March 2014)
(ZZ—mE=A=+—H)

1 (%)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 € HBERBEEEE &)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(i) (Continued) (i) (&)
(c) (Continued) (c) (&)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income FEZEKEE
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014

BE-Z—NF

31 March 2013
2T —=4F

=A=+t-8 =A=+—8
LFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Decrease in profit for the year FRE AR (1,363) (1,849)
Increase in actuarial gain/(loss) on defined FEREAEEEE
benefit plan s, (518G 1,130 (169)
Decrease/(increase) in exchange differences & GINETE 2 FEH,
on translation of foreign operations ZER A () 386 29
Increase/(decrease) in other comprehensive  ANA BB AFEILEE
income for the year attributable to owners H 2 mEU s,
of the Company CRid) 1,516 (198)
Increase/(decrease) in total comprehensive  ZNA &) AE(EFE
income for the year attributable to owners 2 EIESEREIL N,
of the Company O A) 153 (2,047)
Consolidated statement of financial position FEMBERRE
31 March 2014 31 March 2013 1 April 2012
—E-IF =% —T——fF
=A=+—H —A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT FAT
Increase in pension scheme BREFEIBE
liabilities N (2,425) 2,578) (531)
Decrease/(increase) in exchange  [& 3, Eh ik
fluctuation reserve B, (1) (357) 29 =
Decrease in retained profits 1R BB i ARk 4> 2,782 2,549 531
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B RS R AR Y

(31 March 2014)

1 (%)

(Z2—mFE=A=+—H)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(ii)

22 BHHBEREESSH e

Change in accounting policy for leasehold (i) HETHREFEFBE
land and buildings 8%
In accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, RIBEEBSHERNE 165RYE B
leasehold land and buildings can either be accounted for FERRE - HE T REFAIRY)
using the cost model or the revaluation model after their IRTERERAKAEN K EHER
initial recognition. The Group accounted for its leasehold land EITRE - REERUEFEHRA
and buildings using the revaluation model in previous years. EHRAZERE T R8T -
Given the fact that most of the leasehold land and buildings FE L AZEREE T &iE
held by listed companies in Hong Kong in the manufacturing REERBHA 2 HE T 8
and retail industries are accounted for using the cost model, FoHEARAERZE - KEE
during the year, the Group aligned its accounting policy RANF E R R T EMRF R
with the industry practice and stated its leasehold land and xR HE L MEFIRK AR 2
buildings at cost less accumulated depreciation and any HITE RAEARERLYIE - it
impairment losses. In addition, the Group’s leasehold land and O FEETAEEHE T RETF
buildings are not expected to be sold in the normal course of TEEEFEBAEE Rz Kt
business, instead, the future economic benefits embodied in BRYIEAZ RREERNZ £ 2
the properties will be recovered principally through use in the BREEA EBEE  cEERA
Group's operation. In the opinion of the directors, this change EMEeHBENE - FAREER
in the accounting policy enables the Group to provide more M ZE BN SRR IR T Z A B
relevant information in the financial statements about its =8 -
performance.
Consolidated income statement makEE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
BE-—Z—NF BE-T—=F
=ZA=+—-H =A=+—H
LLFE IHEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Decrease in cost of sales HEK AR 3,522 1,277
Decrease in administrative expenses TR SRS 2,343 646
Increase in profit for the year attributable to AKAREBANEBEFE
owners of the Company s A N 5,865 1,923
Increase in earnings per share attributable to AR @A A FE(H T
owners of the Company AR N
Basic HA HK1.2 cents HKO0.4 cent
1.274 0.4
Diluted e HK1.2 cents HKO0.4 cent
1.27%4L 04711l
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 EiHBERBESH &
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(ii) Change in accounting policy for leasehold i) HEXTHREFESTHE
land and buildings (Continued) = AC))
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income FEEZEWER
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
BHE-Z-—NF BE-_T—=F
=A=t—-H =ZA=t+—H

IHEE IHEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Increase in profit for the year FFEEFE N 5,865 1,923
Decrease in revaluation surplus on HETHREFER
leasehold land and buildings BERRD (98,807) (105,278)
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities ELEBIEE ER D 24,492 24,663
Increase in exchange differences on WEFINEFRZEN,
translation of foreign operations AEREE N (1,613) (265)
Decrease in other comprehensive income KAREB ANELFE
for the year attributable to owners of the Hh 2 EMzR D
Company (75,928) (80,880)
Decrease in total comprehensive income KRR ANELFE
for the year attributable to owners of the 2EWRBTERD
Company (70,063) (78,957)
Consolidated statement of financial position FEMBERRE
31 March 2014 31 March 2013 1 April 2012
—E-mF —E-=F —E——F
=RA=+—H —A=+—H mMA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET BT
Decrease in property, plant and Y% BE R
equipment BTN (257,695) (163,140) (59,520)
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities ~ ¥EIERH B & &R 4 63,213 38,721 14,058
Decrease in asset revaluation reserve & & & {4 Z #4895 201,451 127,136 46,521
Decrease in exchange fluctuation [ X R BRI A
reserve 5,738 4,125 3,860

Increase in retained profits R G N (12,707) (6,842) (4.919)
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Other than the early adoption of HKAS 36 Amendments as disclosed
in note 2.2, the Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Amendments

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Financial Instruments*

Hedge Accounting and amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39"

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment Entities’

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to HKAS16 and HKAS38
Clarification of Acceptance Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation?

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
— Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting'

Levies!

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued

in January 20142

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
in January 20142
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application and is not yet
in a position to state whether they would have a significant impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e,, existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(© the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

2.3
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family

and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iif) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:
(i the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary

of the other entity);

(iif) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the

asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land under finance leases  Over the lease terms

Buildings 2% to 15%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms or 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures, equipment and 20%
motor vehicles
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease
payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through

profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and bills receivables and other receivables which are

classified and accounted for as loans and receivables.

Subsequent measurement - loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

the income statement in finance costs for loans.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts and bills payables,
other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings which are classified
and accounted for as loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement - loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to

be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term

deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure incurred
in the construction cost of an infrastructure project, are recognised at
their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the income statement by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured

reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,

nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the

MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the Retirement Scheme. Contributions
to the Retirement Scheme are charged to the income statement
as incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
Retirement Scheme before his/her interest in the Group's employer
contributions vests fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer

contributions.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme for their employees who are registered as permanent
residents in Mainland China. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the

rules of the central pension scheme.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation

method.

Remeasurements arising from a defined benefit pension plan,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales”
and “administrative expenses” in the income statement by function:

service COsts comprising current service costs, past-service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements
net interest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

24

FESHHERE»)

BERR )

E R aT

MRIE L E BRI AT BIER AR R Z A~ Th
ERERAEMEEREMEBELEE

REBBAMEARSITEIMESE 2 EHMGT
E BREBELRELEE BELRZF
Z(TEREMNEFR)ALFEEEZ @R
(TEEMNEFRE) - RS MBI
RPHER  WEBHELHRZEMEE
WasMR BN AR BB T REAR
77 EXtERNERBRIGEROEE

bi=F=3

B

BERBERALR TIRFERNERAE

FEETS R R ¢ &
REBEREARERAZA

MEFRDRARREHER RN EERK
BEFEETRIRGE - AERBEIRYIES
DEWERIE N HERAE I RITTHFA ]
hHERERENEEFE THIEE

MRIGRCA (B IR E BIRFEACAS - B
ERRTERRA - HER S T E BRfE
Yoz Ko &518)

A EF B AFEER

BEKAE

B EERNEEREREE(AIA—
BREEMAEREZEREAEGHHE
EE)EEMBZBERANGTUER
b ERRFEEZINKA  HEEZF
BEARLEZERERAEZALERR
k- BEEEEREEEREE ZMXA
T BEREMRBZRERA - #EX
LEBERAPHR - A EMEERAR
ELHRXE  BERAREERERES
fEEEERNF S REAMMKA o



ZZ—[NEFIHR Annual Report 2014

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B ek By et (48)
(31 March 2014)
(Z2—mFE=A=+—A1)

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
retranslation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or income
statement is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
income statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has
to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows, which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could have a material effect on the net present value used
in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the market demand
for the product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment are different from
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
each financial year end date based on changes in circumstances.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2014
was HK$26,112,000 (2013: HK$26,112,000). Further details are given in
note 17.

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment allowance for doubtful debts based on
an assessment of the recoverability of accounts and bills receivables.
Allowances are applied to accounts and bills receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such differences will
have an impact on the carrying value of the receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group determines that there are five
reportable operating segments, based on location of customers (the
destination of sales), including Mainland China, the United States of
America (the "USA"), Europe, Japan and others. These segments are
managed separately as each segment is subject to risks and returns
that are different from each other.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income and other unallocated income, and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

gEIWMER @)

Group - 2014 REEH-—_ZE—F
Mainland
USA China Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
£H B R BE M 2R Hib & =8
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx FEx TEx TERT TER
Segment revenue: PDEEZWA
Sales to external customers  HETFHATF 464,754 339,199 218,513 151,238 310,070 1,483,774
Segment results PEEE 43,402 29,774 15,914 7,920 21,786 118,796
Interest and other unallocated  F 8 R E M AN E
income A 4,452
Unallocated expenses AAESH (86,016)
Profit before tax BB AR R 37,232
Income tax expense FiEHAS (15,362)
Profit for the year attributable N2\ )G AFE(R
toownersofthe Company M 21,870
Segment assets PEEE 394,323 282,504 190,103 101,361 243010 1,211,391
Unallocated assets ANBEE 344,161
1,555,552
Segment liabilities PEEE 53,936 43,981 32,570 11,903 35,172 177,562
Unallocated liabilities *PEaE 366,073
543,635
Other segmentinformation: B BER
Depreciation and FEREH
amortisation 16,180 8,919 5,996 3,814 8,863 43,772
Unallocated amounts AOEEE 20,452
64,224
Capital expenditure * ERET 8,502 3,894 2,227 1,172 3,550 19,345
Unallocated amounts KRS 1,164
20,509
o Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and equipment. & BARLREYE  BEREENRE -
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4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Group - 2013 (restated)

4.

KReEsFER (@)
AEFE-—ZS—=F(LKE)

Mainland
USA China Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
e HREIARE BN B HtipE e
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TET TR AL FHL TAT AL
Segment revenue: PDEEZWA
Sales to external customers  $HEFINREP 309,800 459,010 250,619 121,601 302,964 1443994
Segment results PEEE 42832 47623 29,747 14449 35,590 170,241
Interest and other unallocated 8 R E A E
income WA 4607
Unallocated expenses AOETH (80.242)
Profit before tax BRI A& R 94,606
Income tax expense ki (21,568)
Profit for the year attributable AN\ BJ%A AJE(R
toownersof the Company ~ FE 7 73,038
Segment assets NEEE 293,900 417814 209,108 81,334 247515 1249671
Unallocated assets AOWEBE 389977
1,639,648
Segment liabilities PEEE 41302 82,945 26,076 7076 31514 188913
Unallocated liabilities KHEEE 435,253
624,166
Other segment information: ~ HHHBER
Depreciation and FEREE
amortisation 11,224 11,182 7859 3015 8,905 42,185
Unallocated amounts AoEeE 20052
62,237
Capital expenditure BARY 21132 226 15217 6,156 17,480 82,47
Unallocated amounts AAWEE 8,069
90,316

* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and equipment.

BEARXAKRERDE - BERREORE
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4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4.
Geographical information - non-current assets

KReEsFER (@)
WEER -FREBEE

2014 2013

—E—-mEF —T—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

(restated)

(ge&E7)

Hong Kong a5 18,201 20,905
Mainland China LIEPN 695,051 725,621
Indonesia ENE 143,335 147,719
856,587 894,245

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of
the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$677,915,000 (2013: HK$750,198,000) and
HK$403,117,000 (2013: HK$371,238,000) were derived from sales to
the largest customer and the second largest customer of the Group,
respectively. The above amounts include sales to group of entities
which are known to be under common control with these customers.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts. All significant intra-group transactions have been
eliminated on consolidation.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as follows:

LI RBEEERBREEMELERES

DE -

EREXEEFNEHR
REFAKXREF - RE_RBEHHERE
BEW AR E6779150008 (=T —=
£ :750,198,0007 7T ) }&2.403,117,000/4 7T (=
T— =4 :371,238000/87C) ° Lt £%EE
BER—HEAZ EEF XTI NEE
HISHE o

EEWAREMBA

BN A BB Y SR THIENRE
HRESFAGE SRR BRHE - &
EEAFAMAEEARBEINGAREE
CER

AEEERBAREMBBAZ DT -

2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
Revenue =EL/ON
Sale of goods BEmiHE 1,483,774 1,443,994
Other income Hug A
Bank interest income RITHIEUWA 1,417 2,897
Others Hih 3,035 1,710

4,452

4,607
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6.

7.

FINANCE COSTS 6. MENA
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest on bank loans wholly HRFRNEEEEY
repayable within five years RITEHFE 5,002 6,239

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. B

A F
A& B BLATE MR (GEA) TI&
13

2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
(restated)
€ =7))
Cost of inventories sold BEETFERA 1,289,041 1,194,374
Auditors’ remuneration AN 2 2,506 2,223
Depreciation (Note 14)* e (fzE14)* 61,856 59,910
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TR - AR & o i
(Note 15)* (HtsE15)* 2,368 2,327
Employee benefits expenses EEEFEH
(excluding directors' remuneration — Note 8): (TBRIEEEME —H:s) :
Wages and salaries TERE® 380,760 327,539
Pension contributions, including a pension RIKSEEIHTK - BER
cost for defined benefit plan of HK$ 1,363,000 FEREEFETEIRRKE
(Note 26) (2013: HK$1,849,000 (restated)) FX751,363,00078 7T (it 5%26)
(ZZF—=% : 1,849,000/87C
(@&EF))) 54,815 37,223
Less: Forfeited contributions B BIRUEER (872) (321)
Net pension contributions RIRSFEIHFER 53,943 36,902
Total employee benefits expenses* 1R B a5 > 434,703 364,441
Minimum lease payments under operating T RIEFEERE
leases in respect of land and buildings* S dlivise X D 3,418 3,331
Foreign exchange differences, net M 5 =R E 4,270 1,964
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment  #§5¥1% - BE M & EEE 2,458 -

*

Included in the respective balances are the following amounts which are W FZHREHPOEA T AL IHER S
also included in the cost of inventories sold disclosed above: FERARZ ©F

2014 2013

—E—mEF —E—=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FT

(restated)

(€=27))

Depreciation e 41,877 40317

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TR+ b FH E R 6 1,896 1,867

Employee benefits expenses EEREAZ 372,076 298,193

Minimum lease payments under T RIEFEEHE
operating leases in respect of land and buildings HIRFAE R 3,418 3,331
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 8.

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EERTRERME

REREZERTHRAEMSRESTER S
RZMABRARES EWRA ETR
A REBRRMEHIZE 161 EREMT

Group
rER
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees W 360 360
Other emoluments: Hifie -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REEREYIEF 4,708 3,261
Discretionary bonuses BIBTEAL - 4,291
Pension scheme contributions BIARE TR 518 446
5,226 7,998
5,586 8,358
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@ BUFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRNTFREULIENTESZ2ESN
the year were as follows: TS €
2014 2013
—E—-E —ET—=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEx FAET
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho PREZRSTAE 120 120
Mr. Li Chi Chung FERELE(R-_T—=F
(resigned on 28 February 2013) ZRZ+\BEHE) - 110
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony BRER B ST A 120 120
Mr. Lu Chi Chant EMEREMN_FT—=F
(appointed on 28 February 2013) ZAZ+HN\BEZE) 120 10
360 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2013: Nil).

FAVEEBERNBLIFNTES
ZHE(ZF—=F: &)

5w
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

8. EERTHAZME»

(b) Executive directors (b) HITE=E
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
§é - 2HR BHfe
e ENER g SR esE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEn TEx TER TER
2014 —E-NE
Executive directors; HTES:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing* BRALE - 1,664 - 230 1,894
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying** B/ e - 1,589 - 216 1,805
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu B - - - - -
Ms.Chen Fang Mei, Christina ~ BR¥E4+ - 1,455 - 72 1,527
- 4,708 - 518 5,226
2013 —T-=%
Executive directors: HWTES:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing* BE A - 1,664 1,959 230 3853
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying** BN - 1,597 1860 216 3673
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu BRETE - - 236 - 236
Ms.Chen Fang Mei, Christina~~ BRF =4+ - - 236 - 23%6
- 3,261 4291 446 7,998

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

The directors’ remuneration shown above does not include
the estimated monetary value of the Group's owned premises
provided rent-free to an executive director, Mr. Chung Yuk
Sing ("“Mr. Chung"), during the year. The estimated rental value
of such accommodation was HK$129,000 (2013: HK$126,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Mr. Chung Yuk Sing was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company on 30 June 2013.

*¥

Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying resigned as the chief executive officer of the
Company with effect on 30 June 2013 and was appointed as the
vice chairman on 6 August 2013.

REEAL BT A ESHEXKRE
TREAEMENE 2 25k -

iR EREIE W R BIERFER
MEITESER FFAE(TEEE]D
RHEENNEE B EYSE 2 HE
BE HE—T-—NF=A=1+—
HIEFE  ZEBzHAHEES
129,000 7L (ZZF —=4F : 126,000
BT °

N BEEALEER_T—=FA
ZtREZEARRRATTRE
o

b BRNEEER_ZT—=FA
ZTHBEARRITRARE
B RZTE—=F/\ABEZ
ERBIERE -
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9
The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2013:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2013: three)
non-director, highest paid employees for the year ended 31 March

hEREHNES

FR - REREHMEERE=4(-%
—ZFWA)EE  BRRSHMO
BEE LM RE - REE-FT—m
EZA=+-ALFER HBTRE(=

2014 are set out below: T—=—F: ZH)maMNerESEES
KNS BT -

Group

TEE
2014 2013
—E—-F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET 3,645 3,900
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT 300 600
Pension scheme contributions IRIREFT B 338 540
4,283 5,040

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

ENTFUATHEN SRS FIEESRES
MEEWOT :

Number of employees

EE®R
2014 2013
—E-E —T-=F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 51,500,000 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 705 2,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T 22,500,000/ 7T - =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 =

7 A
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FRBH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: BEFESHRUNERNEETBELENMEER
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong s MR 165%( —FE—=4F : 165%) Fi X
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been Bt o Hithth 5 FERFDE A TBLIE - AR
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the BAEBEEKERRNE M RAE -
Group operates.
Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC being effective RER-ZEZENF— A —BERHFEHD
on 1 January 2008, the corporate income tax rate for all enterprises in EBRE  PRAREMBCENTERN
Mainland China is 25%. BELER /525% °
FRGIRBRIEIR AR (‘Maitex PRC) s entitled to be exempted FRBEIRHHKAR AR ([ERRH ) AT
from corporate income tax in the People’s Republic of China (the E#eEmERFFERNFEARLFER
“PRC") for the first two profit-making years and a 50% reduction in (THEEDDEMSH  UWREHE=FE
corporate income tax for the succeeding three years. Moreover, under AR BATS0% I EEATEH o W - BIER
the relevant tax laws and regulations in Mainland China, this company AR B RREERIS A RIRE - 5228 Al i
may set off losses incurred by it in a financial year against profits made ERN—EAFBRFEEELZEE  BEER
by it in the succeeding financial year or years, subject to a maximum E—REsZRAYBREE 2 %27 B&x%
of five financial years. TEBBAFEPBFEE -
According to the confirmation obtained by the Group from the PRC RIE AR B B R AR 2 fER - B]R
tax bureau, the first profit-making year of Maitex PRC was the year FEBNEERNTFERABE_ZSZNF
ended 31 December 2008. +—A=+—HLEEFE-
Group
rER
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current tax charge for the year: REEREABIES W
Hong Kong B 9,520 19,132
Elsewhere Hibibh 5 6,506 11,998
Overprovision of current tax in respect of prior years @1 & & BN HATH TH B 58 B i (1,177) (7,371)
Deferred (Note 27) RIE (F5E27) 513 (2,191)
Total tax charge for the year AEERHIEL N @58 15,362 21,568
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using

mEHRw@

ERRARA T RE A HE A T
OB LR RE TR R 2 R A%
R BB P BR RIS R 8 BB

the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions in which the Company and
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

11.

effective tax rate is as follows: T2
Group
rER
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
(restated)
(#E3))
Profit before tax BRT AT A 37,232 94,606
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in the tax REBRNGREERERNER
jurisdictions concerned ZRRETE 2RI 6,654 15,439
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday MISERE 2 R =K - (854)
Adjustments in respect of BT ERNEATIB (P
current tax of previous years (1,177) (7,371)
Income not subject to tax ARG ZHA (1,820) (1,014)
Expenses not deductible for tax A% 2 B 2,589 2,341
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the distributable  F14§7N & B~ &b BB A A
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries A 3K s K 5% TBHI TR 2 28 513 (2,191)
Tax losses not recognised RIERF I EE 8,603 15,100
Others EAh = 18
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAREBERRETE
BiIESE H 15,362 21,568

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11.

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for

RRRER AEEFERR

HE_Z-—ME=A=1T—HILFEAR

the year ended 31 March 2014 includes a loss of HK$3,210,000 (2013: AR A AFE(R AR A s T B 75 &5 183,210,000
HK$5,383,000) dealt with in the financial statements of the Company BIL(ZZF— =4 : 5383,000/70) B AA

(Note 30).

N RIBA T R A R AR (BfRE30) -
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12.

DIVIDENDS 12. BRE
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E-=5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Dividends paid during the year: FREMES :
Final in respect of the financial year ended HE—_ZT—=%=F=+—H
31 March 2013 - HK4 cents per ordinary share IFEBRFE AR E — 3K
(2013: final dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary EBARABI(ZE—=F :
share, in respect of the financial year ended BE—_Z——#=A=1+—H
31 March 2012) IET B E R EE
TRz EN) 19,987 34,978
Interim — HK4 cents (2013: HK7 cents) FRERRR B — B m A4
per ordinary share (ZZT—=F : 7781 19,987 34,978
39,974 69,956
Proposed final dividend — Nil BRRHAKE -
(2013: HK4 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ2—=%F  478() - 19,987

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a final

ExeEBR TREBE_T—NF=A

dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the annual
general meeting. These financial statements did not reflect the

dividend payable as at 31 March 2013.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year of
HK$21,870,000 (2013: HK$73,038,000 (restated)), and 499,680,000

(2013: 499,680,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 as
the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during

those years.

13.

=T RUEFEZREEE

HE_Z-—=F=ZA=+—HILFEZ#&
IR SARFAR BB RN RBFAN
SHUER - HRAMEE - ZRBE_T—=F
Z A=+ B BERR L ER R ER AR

B o
=N

RAREREAEBEZRER

BREABFDIBEFARNQFER A
JE {535 %11 21,8700008 T ( — T — =4 :
73,038,000 7T (KX EF)) » ARFAE
77499,680,000% ( —Z — =4 : 499,680,000
&) EBARETH -

BE— T NER-_T—=F=ZA=1+—
ALLFE HEEEHEFE 2 BRTY
B A2 EREARNRFITEER
K o
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERRE

Group RE
31 March 2014 —E-mNE=ZA=+—8H
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures,
land and Leasehold Plantand equipment and
buildings  improvements machinery motor vehicles Total
HE iz HRE KB
T RETF MEERE BEksE RERAE @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET FET THET
Cost: A :
At beginning of year G2
As previously reported WA 2R 818,563 110,838 214,120 73,259 1,216,780
Prior year adjustment BEFEHE (103,683) - - - (103,683)
As restated LE5 714,880 110,838 214,120 73,259 1,113,097
Additions RE 332 12,851 6,162 1,164 20,509
Disposals HeE - - - (1,420) (1,420)
Write-off e - (9,268) - (26) (9,294)
Exchange realignment i 5B 6,478 1,189 1,127 555 9,349
At 31 March 2014 RZE-EF=A=+-H 721,690 115,610 221,409 73,532 1,132,241
Accumulated depreciation: ZRNE
At beginning of year E2)
As previously reported PRI - 83,245 127,404 50,987 261,636
Prior year adjustment BEEEHE 59,457 - - - 59,457
As restated e 59,457 83,245 127,404 50,987 321,093
Provided during the year EREE 24,276 12,049 17,958 7,573 61,856
Disposals HE - - - (966) (966)
Write-off ik - (6,836) - - (6,836)
Exchange realignment B H AR 294 805 (110) 308 1,297
At 31 March 2014 R-Z—M&E=A=+—H 84,027 89,263 145,252 57,902 376,444
Net book value: EmFE:
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NFE=A=+—H 637,663 26,347 76,157 15,630 755,797
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14, ¥1%¥ - BRER R HE @)
Group rEE
31 March 2013 —E—-=%=H=+—H
Fumiture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plantand and motor Construction
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE HE RE-%E-
ThREF WERE  BERRE  RBRAE fRIR &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Cost: B
At beginning of year 4
As previously reported S 290523 107,807 196,265 61,335 39797 1053901
Prior year adjustment BEFERE (23,425) - - - - (23,425)
Asrestated ] 267,098 107,807 196,205 61335 397,971 1030476
Additions RE 20900 3041 16516 9271 40,588 90316
Transfers 477 4294% - 2191 2814 (434501) -
Exchange realignment (restated) B iR (mED) (2614) (10 (852) (161) (4058) (7695)
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F=fA=t1-H 714,880 110838 214120 73259 = 1,113,097
Accumulated depreciation: ZHRNE:
At beginning of year &4
As previously reported MEI2H - 71803 110377 53303 - 225483
Prior year adjustment BEERE 36095 - = = = 36,005
As restated aE5| 36,095 71803 110377 43303 = 261,578
Provided during the year (restated)  FREHE(ZE5) 23,608 11446 17,148 7,708 - 59910
Exchange realignment (restated) B 5 AR (&) (24p) o (121) (24) - (395)
At31 March 2013 RZZ-=5=f=t1-H 59457 83245 127404 50987 - 321093
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F=f=1-H 655423 27593 86,716 2272 - 792,004
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. Y¥ -  BERZHE®)

An analysis of the carrying amount of the land and buildings of the RMEER » AEBZ T MEFZRE
Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
(restated)
(#&E35)
Land and buildings held on REBAFBHEOSEZ
medium term leases in Hong Kong T AEF 16,069 16,543
Land and buildings held on BB AN R AR HAFE 49
medium term leases outside Hong Kong BHZ L RIETF 620,529 637,791
Buildings held on long term leases outside REB AN R LA R BAFE 4
Hong Kong HAEZET 1,065 1,089
Total carrying amount 4R E 637,663 655,423
At 31 March 2014, the Group has undertaken not to charge one of the RZZE—MF=RA=+—08 ' NEBEER
Group's buildings with a net carrying amount of HK$73,560,000 (2013 VB $R R S ) B AR — 1 BR TED ) {573,560,000
HK$75,267,000 (restated)). BIL(ZF—=F : 752670008 T (i& &
F))EF -
15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. T LHBEERIE
Group
2014 2013
—E-mF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Carrying amount at beginning of year FHEEMEE 78,438 80,765
Amortisation recognised during the year (Note 7)  FASE R MERBESS (FH7E7) (2,368) (2,327)
Exchange realignment I 5, 38 B 943 -
Carrying amount at 31 March R=EA=+—RZEmE 77,013 78,438
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATENFUE ~ e REMER
deposits and other receivables (Note 16) FRIB 2 BIERER S (FisE16) (2,335) (2,309)

Non-current portion JEBNHEAES > 74,678 76,129
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued) 15. EML#HBEERES

An analysis of the carrying amounts of prepaid land lease payments of RBER - AEEEMN LB ERE

the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREES AT
2014 2013
—E-ImF =5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Long term leases outside Hong Kong FEEIN REAFAL 3,216 3,289
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong BERINZ R B LY 73,797 75,149
77,013 78,438
One of the Group's prepaid land lease payments with a net book value AREEAES —IBREFE,597,000%T(=
of HK$1,597,000 (2013: HK$1,608,000), together with the leasehold T—=1F 116080008 L) 2B LHHEE
buildings which had been fully depreciated at 31 March 2014 and RE - BRN-E—NEER=T—=F=
2013 has been provided as rent-free accommodation to Mr. Chung, an A=+ HEREWMEZHEEFNFR
executive director of the Company during the year. REIERELE(RRAR—BRTES)Z

RAETRE
16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16. FE{IFIE & R HMEKRR
RECEIVABLES i}
Group Company
AEH ANF]

Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
Mzt —B—ME —T-—=F —B-NF —T-=F
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT F#ExT FHT
Prepaid land lease payments  F&{t T 1A EFKIE 15 2,335 2,309 - -
Prepayments TET IR 11,595 7,144 105 137
Deposits and other receivables 124 K H b & U 7k 18 13,932 12,864 - =
27,862 22,317 105 137
None of the financial assets included in the above balances is either i A% 8RB IE ) & B & BE 30 A 8 HR SlOR

past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

TE @%ELM:FEWMIEAD%WE’J% BE
B T HIN R AR
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17.

GOODWILL GEES
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost and carrying amount: FRAME AR TEE
At beginning and end of year RE R F 26,112 26,112

The Group's goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-generating unit
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and garments
(the “Unit"). The recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined
from the value in use, which is calculated with reference to cash flow
projections based on a five-year period financial budget approved by
senior management. The financial budgets are prepared reflecting
actual and prior year performance and development expectations.
The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are the budgeted
gross margin which is the average gross profit margin achieved in the
year immediately before budgeted years and the discount rate of 14%,
which is before tax and reflects specific risks relating to the Unit. The
cash flow projections are prepared based on the assumption that the
cash-generating unit will have revenue based on the actual sales order
amount and revenue forecasted by the head of the sales department
for the first year, and then maintain a 5% growth rate thereafter.
The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the Unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the Unit is higher than its carrying amount, the
directors consider there was no impairment of the goodwill at the end
of the reporting period.

REBZBHE2BABEEED IR EKK
TENBEEZRSELBM([ZEML]) -
iﬁﬁZTW@%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%Eﬁﬁ
F - MEREBEIREHSREEASE
ez AFHRYHRBREMBAZRERES
B -WBHEEZHELRRER  BESF
ERAREHER -ReRERAzEE
BRAMAEZEMNE(NERREFE
RIEZ FEPTER 2 I EFF) KA =
14% (T RRA Al Mo S BR B % BB B R 2 5 7E

J_Uﬂ )° Iﬁw//lbéiﬁ EME'(TFLEL@?EE XV
i RS R AR E - ZRRIVRIEE
BIHER BB RIHEMEENEFMIE
U TRR - HIRM R s it R - &
=ME - EZERRAESEMHE
HE) BregRgEfc@REERH
BARE R o AR ZEM 2P E S
SREREE  EFRANRERREE
WA IR EE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RHBARZKRE
Company
RATF

2014 2013
—E—-{F —T—=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETIRE - RAE 43,368 43,368

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The loan to a subsidiary included in the Company's current assets is
unsecured, interest-bearing at the rate of 1.9% (2013: 2.2%) per annum
and repayable on demand or within one year.

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries, would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

R B A B 2 R FE N R R SRR
RENBERERERE

RTHBRRAZERBERARBTZRE
BEN  REER  AENEI9%(ZF
— =5 1 22%)FH B RBERERIN—FA
B -

TRIHARRMERR] - REFERR
R RERRHAEBFAEEEERY
EYRRAEHEEFEIERMD - &
EZEARA  HNEMHMBERARERE
SERBANTTE °

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBAFFBWOT ¢

Place of Percentage of

incorporation/ Issued share/ equity attributable to

registration and paid-up the Company

business registered capital KAREEESZEDL
Name SMEY/ AR BRITRG/ 2014 2013 Principal activities
NRER REEY BREMER —T-NE —T-=F IEEH
Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2; 100 100 Investment holding
Ex(EX%E)ER AR EH Non-voting deferred REER

HK$10,000 (Note (a))
(2013: Ordinary HKS2;
Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000)
LRk
ERFRETR
100007 7T (Rt (a)
(ZT—=%: Bk
VBT ERRER
ERR100007TT)



ZZ—[NEFIHR Annual Report 2014

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B ek By et (48)
(31 March 2014)
(Z2—mFE=A=+—A1)

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RMEARZRE®
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued share/ equity attributable to
registration and paid-up the Company
business registered capital ARREGESEAL

Name MY B 2RITRG/ 2014 2013 Principal activities

NGRS REEHE ARdMER —FT-nF —T-= TEEH

RECLEE)EXRERAR PRC/Mainland China US$23,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("YM (Shantou)’) (Notes (b)and (¢) /Bl AfE (2013: US$23,500,000) sportswear and garments
(M3 ClisA) D (M b R () 23,500000% 7T EEREEEIRRAK

(ZF-—=F:
23500000%7T)

RECIE) 8K AR A PRC/Mainland China HK$15,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("YY Shantou)’) (Notes (b)and (¢) & /R EIARE (2013: HK$15,000,000) sportswear and garments
(AECLEA) D (ML R(©) 15,000,000/ 7T EEREEEIRRAK

(ZB-=%:

15,0000007 )
Eagle Nice Development Limited Hong Kong HKS1 (2013: HKS1) 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
BEERRARATF BE 18T sportswear and garments
(Z2—=F:1}1) EEREEEDRRAK
Yue Mei (HK) Garment Limited Hong Kong HKST (2013: HKS1) 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
WE(FB)ERERAE 5 18T sportswear and garments
(Z2—=F:1%71) EEREZEHRRMK
Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
FR(EXEE)ERAR 3 (2013:HK$1,000) sportswear and garments
1,000 7 HEREEEHRRAK

(ZZ—=% : 1000%7T)

ERERASRERAA] PRC/Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("Maitex PRC") (Notes (b) and (c)) /B AR (2013: HK$40,000,000) sportswear and garments
Xy DIGEGE) 40000000%7C EEREEEIRRAK

(ZZ2—=F:

40,000,000 7T)
King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 (2013: HKS1) 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
cE(EX5E)ER AR B 18T sportswear and garments
(Z2—=F:1}871) EEREEEDRRMK

SECUBEKERAR PRC/Mainland China US$2,680,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
('KE (Shantou)’) R /B ARE (2013: US$2,680,000) sportswear and garments
(Notes (b), (c) and (d) 2680000 7T EERBEEPRRAK
(T&ECLE)]) (ZZ—=%:

(FHE®) * (OR() 26800005 7T)

BREAEEKERAR PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
('Hung Eagle Garment') g B (2013: US$4,000,000) sportswear and garments
(Notes (b) and (c) 4,000,000 7T EERBEEYRRAK
(IBR%E D (b RO) (Z2—=F:

4,000000%7T)
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RMEARZRE®
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued share/ equity attributable to
registration and paid-up the Company
business registered capital AAREGESEA
Name ST B BRTRE/ 2014 2013 Principal activities
NEER REXBH HRdMER —FT-nF —T-=F IEER
Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Hong Kong HKST (2013: HKST) 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited B 18T RARK
Bx(HR)ERERDA (ZZ—=F 1)
P.T. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$27,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
('EN Indonesia”) Hfe (2013:US$27,000,000) sportswear and garments
((ExER]) 2700000057 EERBEEPRRAK
(ZF—=F:
27,000,000 7T)
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
EX(IR)S#KERAR &k (2013:HK$10,000) RERR
10000787
(Z2—=F:
10000/7T)
Ex(EL)ZKERAR PRC/ Mainland China US$25,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“EN (vifeng)") (Notes (b) and (c)) g B AR (2013: US$25,000,000) sportswear and garments
((EX(E8)])(FFoko) 25,000,000%7T EEREEEHRRMK
(Z2—=%:
25,000,000 7T)
Notes: Bi5E
() The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to (a) EREREERY EEFERRE - HFE
attend or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus BEASHESG HEE  UREBRRE
assets in a return of capital in a winding-up (other than the nominal BRARESEMNNMBREE(FRRERY
amount paid up or credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of 3/ A% #8.2£100,000,000,000,0007 7T 2k T A
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been distributed to the AEBEREE AL BERNDZEEIA
holders of the ordinary shares of the company in such winding-up). BRDIVES R M EERRIN) ©
(b) YM (Shantou), YY (Shantou), Maitex PRC, KE (Shantou), Hung Eagle Garment (b) WECLE) - MECLEE) - BRES - &
and EN (Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under BGLEE) - BREERER(EL) ARE
PRC law. PEVEEFM I B ERE -
(© The statutory financial statements of these entities are not audited by Ernst (© ZEERBNEEMBRRAREEBLKE
& Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Emst & Young global TR E RS AT ek 2ok B PR AR 4R H b Ak B A &)
network. Fix o
(d) KE (Shantou) was under deregistration as at year end and up to the date of (d) BEFAMEEHEXSUBHHRRER -

approval of these financial statements.

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

BB CIIER) EREHEMS -

LiliFr BB AR mA R REERES
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19. INVENTORIES 19. FE

Group

AEE
2014 2013
—2-mE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 100,954 111,827
Work in progress BT 126,978 105,735
Finished goods BURY Sh 32,343 12,168
260,275 229,730

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. EWERRKEEE

20.

The Group's accounts and bills receivables mainly relate to a few
recognised and creditworthy customers. The credit period is generally
for a period of 30 to 45 days (2013: 30 to 45 days). The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
the credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group. The accounts and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

REE 2 R IR R M B IE £ B ERE TR
REERITNEFEE - EEH—KA30
REASK(ZE—=F : 30KRZE45K) o &~
EEBNE R EERKETBRAREES
BT BB RBRIEH E&IEKTE o @
Rz AR EEEIRE TSN - &
KRR R RIE AR BIR

BEAREH I 2 BIRR M RER RS
SAMMRROITT

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Within 30 days 30 KA 81,222 114,266
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 34,793 45,639
61 to 90 days 61 REI0K 10,193 5,999
Over 90 days 90ALA = 8,055 18,100

134,263 184,004
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20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

FEWBR T R Z48 ()
BRI 88 T 5 T8 A R A RS 50
SRR AT -

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—-ME ZE—=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired REEATAARE 116,015 184,004
Less than 3 months past due BN =1EH 18,248 -
134,263 184,004

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of customers that have a good track records with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

RAEHTRBRENEBUERETFERH
ZE RPN R KRR o

ERMEARRER EKIRTER BN A
SERERIFNEECHENETE, - R
BAENEER  ARREZERRBAED
MERE  AZSHERIBRTEEER
BEREZSHRERDRE ST 2EKE -

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. REeRBELEEIEHR
Group Company
rEHE RAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —ET—=F ZZT-NFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FiET FBT FAT
Cash and bank balances Re RRITET 275,316 299,282 623 548
Non-pledged time deposits with ~ REZIHADR=EA =z
original maturity of less than IEE R TE T
three months 1,249 10,070 - 10,070
Cash and cash equivalents Re R[S EEEE 276,565 309,352 623 10,618
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21.

22.

23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 21. RERkASFEEREB @
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances RIEIR  REBUARE(TARKE])
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to FHEMIRE RIRTTAETF R 161,707,000 7T
HK$161,707,000 (2013: HK$150,197,000). RMB is not freely convertible (ZZ—=1F 150,197,000 7T) - AR
into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign TEEARLBABHMER - AMIBETEH
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale KPERIINE B IR IRHIA SR A5 08 -~ 08 R A
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted FEEIRIRT @ NEBEL S IBERED
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to IMNESETS 2 RITIEARE LR BHME
conduct foreign exchange business. o
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank FRBITHIRSIRERETEARNER ZF
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods B)SEEEMAE - AEEIZANFEESFHE
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate EH—BZE=AAMEHTETHER - D
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective RIS A TE BRTF SR R BRER R 8, o SR1T4E
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with SRIERR AEE DR R 2 R
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. 1T e
ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 22. ENERREREREE
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the end of RBEMRZENERRERBREEER
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HARBRER D ATIO T -
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—NE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Within 90 days 90K 89,207 102,259
91 to 180 days 91 RZE180K 1,469 1,843
181 to 365 days 181 RE365K 578 569
Over 365 days 365 KA 1= 4,858 4,149
96,112 108,820
The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENEREREERERAEEER - EEH—K
normally settled on 45-day terms. Included in accounts and bills BasK e R-FE—=F=F=+—H:t A
payables of HK$108,820,000 as at 31 March 2013 was bills payables JE 1~ BR 5% F2 2245 108,820,000 7T B2 38 FE 1+
of HK$2,320,000 which were supported by a corporate guarantee Z4£2320,000/8 70 © LARRAIERN Z A A)
executed by the Company amounting to HK$46,000,000. There were ¥E1R46,000 00078 TLIESZ £ - R=E— U4
no bill payables as at 31 March 2014. =A=+—0  UEEAENERE -
BANKING FACILITIES 23. RITHEAEE

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's banking facilities were supported
by the corporate guarantees executed by the Company and a
subsidiary of the Company to the extent of HK$368,000,000 (2013:
HK$316,000,000), of which an aggregate amount of HK$122,396,000
was utilised (2013: HK$155,966,000), and an undertaking of the Group
not to charge one of the Group's buildings (note 14).

R-BE—NE=A=+—0 A&EEZ
BITHEAEEUARRATI RE - B A
AIBEUNARIERIEZR  HELERA
368,000,000/ 70 (= Z — =4F : 316,000,000
BIT) B AA $£122,396,00058 7T ( =
T — =4 1 155,966,00058 7T ) LA Rz 7K = 8] &
A NERAREEE R —@EEF(rE14)
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24,

25.

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, MEitEEREMENRIE
Group Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE = ZZ-NF —T-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FERT FAT
Deferred income TEIEUA 518 1,130 - -
Other payables Hfh et ko8 35,155 57,003 - -
Accruals =i 45,693 38,336 7 -
81,366 96,469 7 -
Other payables of the Group at 31 March 2014 included a subsidy AEERZZE—HF=A=+—HKEM
of HK$3,974,000 (2013: HK$3,403,000) received from the People’s BRRERERFEIIAEEEEAR
Government of Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, the PRC for the 8T BT YL ER 3,974,000 L (ZE — =4 -
construction cost of basic infrastructure to be incurred by the Group 3,403,000/ 7C) M) - ERASEMIET
for the development of the Jiangxi Project. During the year, an BEENERZREEXNR - £ - B8
amount of HK$639,000 (2013: HK$3,243,000) was utilised and has F3639,0008 7L (=T — =4 : 3243,000/8
been offset against the construction cost. TO)N LARE SRR AR 8 o
INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. TEBRITER
Group rEH
Effective
Interest rate BERRI=R Maturity Z8A 2014 2013
(%) (%) (Note) (P 3E) —E-ImF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Current BN
Bank loans RITEFR 101%t0 16% 101%E1.6% Ondemand fEEk 339,620 387,646
(2013:1.14% to (ZT—=F:
2.2%) 1.14%%2.2%)
Company AKAT
Effective
Interest rate BRI Maturity Z#A 2014 2013
(%) (%) (Note) (P 3E) —E-—mEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FHT
Current BNHA
Bank loans RITEFR  1.01%t0 1.6% 1.01%%1.6% Ondemand FEZEK 217,224 234,000

(2013:1.14% to
2.2%)

(Z2—=%:

1.14%%2.2%)
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. T EHRITER =z
(Continued)
Note: BREE -
As at 31 March 2014, HK$122,396,000 (2013: HK$153,646,000) of the bank borrowings R-ZE—WMFE=A=+—H - 339,620,000 T(—=
of HK$339,620,000 (2013: HK$387,846,000) were supported by corporate guarantees T— =14 : 3878460008 L) ZRITEE + H
executed by the Company and a subsidiary of the Company and an undertaking of 122,396,000/ 7L ( = Z — =4 : 153,646,0007 7T ) LA
the Group not to charge one of the Group's buildings (note 14). AR B R AN B — B A B3R LA BB R R A
SETNERARNREE D BT 2 A (e (1
F14) o
Other than the Company's bank borrowings which were denominated BARRRMRITEENETFHEN A&
in US$, the Group's other bank borrowings were denominated in HKS. B E AL H)SRITREE A TEHE
Since the Group's and the Company’s bank loans contain repayment MRARBERARFRNRITEREERE
on-demand clauses, they are included within current interest-bearing SRIEEZ 550 /TAqu)\EUHﬁ STRRITE
bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable on demand. & Iﬁﬁﬁﬁgg*EﬁZﬁﬁ%M °
Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts repayable *ETF?E RZEFH - AEERAR
in respect of the Group’s and the Company's bank loans are analysed as Eﬁﬁ\}%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ T
follows:
Group Company
rEE RAFE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OFE —FT-=F ZB-NE “—FT—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T TET FHET
Analysed into: Pax iy =
Within one year —FR 145,040 145,250 38,790 39,000
In the second year F-F 194,580 31,250 178,434 -
In the third to fourth years, FE=FZRENF
inclusive (BREEEME) - 211,146 - 195,000
339,620 387,646 217,224 234,000
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26. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 26. RIREETEIEE
The Group provides benefits for its employees of its subsidiary in AREBBIBHES TANRE - AEAEL
Indonesia who achieve the requirement age of 55 years based on the FERINE AR FESSEERRFROESLR
provisions of the Indonesian Labour Law. HAEF -
The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the ZEtEmEN AR RETEB R
life expectancy.
The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the HEEEZETBEMERARATEINEE
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at 2 HEHRFE e BE R R 2 B
31 March 2014 by Biro Pusat Aktuaria, an independent actuary with a & FARBiro Pusat AktuariaZR FR T BE A 5 K
licence from Indonesia Ministry of Finance, using the projected unit FRZE—NFE=—A=1+—HEF - %%
credit method. These obligations are not funded by the Group. HEETAREAEBHK o
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting RMERRMEAC T ERERRNT ¢
period are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
Discount rate (%) B3R 2R (0p) 8.5 6.0
Expected rate of salary increases (%) TEETH @I RE (%) 7.0 7.0
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31 RZZE—WF=ZA=+—H ' EABRKXZ
March 2014 is shown below: EERRESWHTRAT
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligation in rate obligation
RERA REBA
EEFE EREFE
b EH #hGEd) b= TR i CR)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FAET FAT
Discount rate BRIR & 1 (475) 1 616
Future salary increase RIRFr &I 1 302 1 (237)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on
a method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

SR DT THAR IR X B HEE RAR A e
SHEEAZEABEHHRAERNE
EHEZHEZTEMMEE
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26.

PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (Continued)

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement

26.

BIKSFTEIRE &)

FLekRT EINER G NS RIER 2 M BB

in respect of the plan is as follows: T
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
(restated)
(#&E35)
Current service cost AR A 1,235 1,811
Interest cost B 128 38
Net benefit expenses 2R S F5E 1,363 1,849
Recognised in cost of sales REHE K A FER 1,161 1,508
Recognised in administrative expenses RITHR RS R 202 341
1,363 1,849
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations AETRINEEHRBEZ2EHNAT
are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTER FAT
(restated)
(&E51)
At 1 April MHUA—HB 2,578 531
Current service cost G RIS 1,235 1,811
Interest cost F B A 128 38
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE/ (W) (1,130) 169
Exchange differences [E N =58 (386) 29
At 31 March R=A=+—H 2,425 2,578
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26.
of plan assets are as follows:

2014

PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (Continued)

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value

Pension cost charged to profit or loss

26.
™
—E-mF

Remeasurement (gains)/losses in
other comprehensive income

BRIKREFHEIRE @)
BB E LIRS UEEY AT ESHN

RESNBRZBHREHA A2 ARV EFHE(KR)/FR
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from included in
included changes other
1 April in profit or infinancial Experience  comprehensive Exchange 31 March
2013 Service cost Net interest loss  assumptions  adjustments income differences 2014
R SRR TARf R
-E-ZF iTAREZ  BBEEC 2ENEZ —E-|F
mA-H IR NERE it RE29 BamEg Nt EXZE =B=1-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THR THR TR TR TR TR THR
Defined benefit REARF|
obligations  EfF 2578 1235 128 1363 (1,001) (129 (1,130 (386) 2425
2013 —B-=fF
Remeasurement (gains)/losses in
Pension cost charged to profit or loss other comprehensive income
R 2RISR £ 2Bk BN B (NS /R
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from included in
included changes other
in profit or in financial Experience  comprehensive Bxchange 31 March
1 April 2012 Service cost Net interest loss assumptions adjustments income differences 2013
R R AR R
Sk 3 SABRZ  EBEEZ FENEZ 3=
mA-A AR MEFE et K889 mRag et Eiz# =F=t-H
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL Fitn Tin T T Tt ThL Titn Tin
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
wE)  mE)  @E) @) @) E®) @) @s) (@)
Defined benefit RE /&
obligations ~ EfE 531 1811 38 1849 - 169 169 29 2578
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26.

PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (Continued)

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets are as

26.

RIS EARE
HEEESEZ ATEZEBRAINT

follows:
2014 2013
—E—lEF =%
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
Equity instruments EATA N/A FEH N/A i A
Debt instruments BEBITA N/A REH N/A i A
Property ES N/A FEH N/A i@ A

Expected contributions to be made in the future years out of the
defined benefit obligations are as follows:

RIREF 2 RERMEETRRHFIE RN
IS 8

2014 2013

—E—NEF —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Within the next 12 months KR1N2EAA - 15
Between 2 and 5 years 2ESEF - -
Between 5 and 10 years 52106 373 217
Over 10 years 10F A 510,094 453,258
Total expected payments TEAMS R4 5E 510,467 453,490

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period is 27.01 years (2013: 28.89 years).

ATERHETRRE RN FIFERR
B2701E(ZB—=4 : 2889%F)
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. EELEHEERE
Group REH
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
Accelerated profits on
tax Asset PRC
depreciation revaluation subsidiaries Total
FEIME AT
hngk RO TREF
HERE EEEM 2B et
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T FET FHET FET
At 1 April 2012 RZE—Z_FMHA—H
As previously reported LRI 2 7R 510 23,764 10,845 35,119
Prior year adjustment BEFEFE
(note 2.2(ii)) (HH3E2.2(1) - (14,058) - (14,058)
As restated 1RE Y| 510 9,706 10,845 21,061
Deferred tax credited to FRETA
the consolidated income RN ERZ
statement during the year EFEREIE (FIEE10)
(Note 10) (restated) (x=&E5) = = (2,191) (2,191)
Withholding tax on repatriation
on earnings from subsidiaries B BB A =) 2 B
in the PRC Z TEHE = = (4,920) (4,920)
RZE—=%F
At 31 March 2013 (restated) =R=+—HB(&=E3) 510 9,706 3,734 13,950
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
Accelerated profits on
tax Asset PRC
depreciation revaluation subsidiaries Total
GETT O
hnEE R
HIEHRE EEEM 2B et
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FET FET
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMA—H
As previously reported LRl 23R 510 48427 3,734 52,671
Prior year adjustment BEFERE
(note 2.2(ii)) (Bt EE2.2() - (38,721) - (38,721)
As restated =gl 510 9,706 3,734 13,950
Deferred tax charged/(credited) R E, (Gt A)
to the consolidated income REWER R 2 EEF IR
statement during the year (M4zE10)
(Note 10) (330) - 843 513
Exchange realignment R - 111 - 111
RZZE—MF
At 31 March 2014 =—A=+—H 180 9,817 4577 14,574
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings accrued after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates is 5%. In estimating the
withholding taxes on dividends expected to be distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have made assessment
based on the factors which included dividend policy and the level of
capital and working capital required for the Group's operations in the

foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2014, there were no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liabilities (2013: Nil) for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries expected to
be distributed, after considering the above mentioned factors, in the

foreseeable future.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$55,000 (2013:
HK$55,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the company in which the tax losses arose.
The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Mainland China and
Indonesia of HK$119,890,000 (2013: HK$91,988,000) and HK$41,076,000
(2013: HK$33,549,000 (restated)), respectively, that will expire in five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of those losses as the directors
consider that it is uncertain whether sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. There are no
income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by

the Company to its shareholders.

27.

EEHEES @)
RIERERE - KA BABER T 2 SMNER
BOEANIEREESIEY REEHY
WI0%TEIE - ZMFER-BEN\EFE—A
— B4R TEAR-ET+E+—A
S+ —REEETEF - R BARE R
HIREE 2 AR TSRS 164 - BIA
R EAENBER - AEE Y @A
RE5% o TR SR B ARER S KB A
A —TENE— A ABELEMEFE
ERE IR B KO TEINRIES - BEO T
ORI B R AN M B ] BRI
FEEAREEBESKTERE -

REITZ—NF=A=+—H &EE it
RE& TR RARK  WEEARARRN
JB X B TR HAAS 20 R ) AR B SR 2 A FE A TR H0
BREXREREEHBARE(ZT—=
FmE) e

RNEBRNE B E £ 2 BB E 8550008 7T
(ZZT—=4 : 550008 7C) A] ERHIAE
HIEELERBEBHR R BEERRE
F o REBMIBEFNFBRAERNEEEZ
FIBEED B A119890,0008T(—T—=
£+ 91,988,000 7T, ) 541,076,000/ 7T (=
T — =4 : 33549000/ 7T (REH)) R
AFEREE - BEREERERTRF
EEZEITHETER T ERT R TR
SEAF AR IBEE - AL EERIET
MIBAE - A al[AERFEIRER S HE
M FTSFifa R -
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28.

29.

ISSUED CAPITAL 28. ERITHRA
Company
PN
2014 2013
—F-@mF —T=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: JEERRAN -
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,0000% 5 A%
HE00 BT iR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: TR
499,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 499,680,000/% &A%
HE00EB L2 @K 4,997 4,997
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. HEBARAESTE

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company'’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group and customers of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 6 August 2003 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to independent non-executive directors’ approval in advance. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company's shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HKS5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

AARIRE —RBEEAE (8
EEMHARERNEERMERNGE
REBATRHEERNEE - ZAEINE
ERSBATBEARRER(BEBL
FRTEF) AEEHMWES AKH
EmARBHEARANEEETS - &t &
B_TZ=F\AXNEBEXR  BKIFES
TBUHSIER] - BRI ZTEIKAZ AN
FEET0FRBRL °

B R B A B R ) RTT LB AR
ZH LRETER - AERARRREM
F B B 1TRD 10% o PMEfRI+ =& 7 5
B - RIEBREA RZTEEEEER
DEATETHORMNEE  HETEEE
AARMEMRHRE HITRMD 1% - £—F
X (AT 38 5% PR R O B B P9 ZE R AR R
RNEBUSBERALAE

MARRES  THRAHREBREHME
BB AR L ERE A EIE
B IEITEEROE o BN RER+Z
BAHMA -« WRAAAREBRRKE L
FERITES RS TMHBARHOBER
o BBAR AR EARERS TR
0.1%BKIZHR & A AR BB ERER
385,000,000 7T+ BIZEE LA AR A & B
SRR LA -
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29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than five years from date of the offer of the share options or the expiry
date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the offer of the share
options; (i) the average closing price of the Company's shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share options had been granted under the Scheme as at 31 March
2014. The Scheme expired on 5 August 2013.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the aggregate of the nominal value of the share capitals of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in August 2003, and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the existing 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully
paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their profits after
tax, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the reserve reaches 50%
of their respective registered capitals. Subject to certain restrictions as
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used to offset against accumulated losses.

29.

30.
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30. RESERVES (Continued) 30. fEE@
Company b /N
Share
premium Capital Retained
account reserve profits Total
Notes & 12
g R ER BERFEE BiFaF e
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FAT
At 1 April 2012 RZE—_—FMA
—H 472,586 43,088 47,329 563,003
Profit and total FRRF &
comprehensive S EREBEE
income for the year 11 - - 179,729* 179,729
Final 2012 dividend ZE-FRER
2 12 - - (34,978) (34,978)
Interim 2013 dividend —E-=—FHHk
2 12 - - (34,978) (34,978)
At 31 March 2013 and R-E—=%F=A1
1 April 2013 =+—BEk=Z%
—=FmMA—H 472,586 43,088 157,102 672,776
Profit and total FRE M R
comprehensive AR
income for the year 11 = = 1,172% 1,172
Final 2013 dividend ZE—=FRER
B 12 - - (19,987) (19,987)
Interim 2014 dividend —ZE—-FR R
B 12 - - (19,987) (19,987)
RZZT—MUF
At 31 March 2014 =A=+—H 472,586 43,088 118,300 633,974
@ The profit of HK$1,172,000 (2013: HK$179,729,000) for the year ended 31 * HE-_T-—NE=RF=+—HILEEER

March 2014 included interest income from a subsidiary of HK$4,382,000
(2013: dividend income of HK$180,000,000 and interest income from a
subsidiary of HK$5,112,000).

The capital reserve of the Company represents the excess of the
then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital reserve may
be distributed to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

1,172,000 70( ZZF — =4 : 179,729,000/
7C) B IE R B B A R FILB WA 4,382,000
BT(ZT—=F : [REMA 180,000,000/
T KR B BT B A B A9 F S A 5,112,000

L) ©

ARRERRHHERNRRRBEAMEE
MEARERSNGAEERE  BLAR
AR M BT ZRAEEZ Z5 - RiF
REREARE  BEAREBAIIRTAR
AR - HEREREEFEIRN RSB BER
ARBMAREBEEREEBHEHNE
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31. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transaction

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group

had the following major non-cash transaction:

During the year ended 31 March 2013, deposits for property, plant and
equipment of HK$10,679,000 were transferred to property, plant and

equipment upon acceptance by and delivery to the Group.

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities not

provided for at the end of the reporting period (2013: Nil).

As at 31 March 2014, the Company and a subsidiary of the
Company has given corporate guarantees to banks to the extent of
HK$368,000,000 (2013: HK$316,000,000) for banking facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries of the Company, which were utilised to the
extent of approximately HK$122,396,000 (2013: HK$155,966,000) at the

end of the reporting period (Note 23).

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leased certain of its office, factories and staff quarters
under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms

ranging from one to two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

31.

32.

33.

RERERERME

IEFRERS
BB RER A A PTRIESN  AEE
BATEBHRERS :

HE-_Z—=—FZA=+—HItFE
10,679,000 T2 Y3 « BEMZE 2 IES
RAEEZARAAEERFEEREY
¥ BB KR o

HAREE
RIREEIR - AR BT RS 2
EASHRBBM-T—=F  |) -

R-ZE—WE=ZF=+—8  A2AIKk
ARAR—EWBARRERETHB AR
BRZEBTEREERBRRITELRS
368,000,000/ 7L (=& — = 4F : 316,000,000
B AEIER - RIEEKR - 2EBAD
122,396,000/ 7t (ZZF— =4 : 155,966,000
HIT) 2 A EIER(FEE23) o

ReHERY
AEERBEEEERHEELETHA
= BERETHES  #EZEHENT—

EFFF-

R K - AR BT B ST
BT 2 kAR T S @R T B IR 1
f :

2014 2013

—E—NEF =%

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Within one year —FR - 3,470

In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEFEFhF(BEEEMSE) = =

- 3,470

The Company did not have any operating lease commitments at the REREER - ANA B I 48 & 10 &
end of the reporting period (2013: Nil). BEZE—=F:8)-
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34. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 33
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end

of the reporting period:

34, &I
% bSO EF335E 71 2 SRR E AR © AN
E BN IRE R BRARENT -

2014 2013
—E-—mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHERT FAT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRTHEREE
Construction of factories and BRIIEE 2HE &
purchases of machinery and s R
equipment for the Jiangxi Project 122 2,091
Renovation of factories for the EBHEREBIEE ZHE
investment project in Indonesia ([ENfRIEE 1)
(the “Indonesia Project”) 2,120 1,529
Purchases of items of property, BEAE - #EXk
plant and equipment HiEIEE 101 1,206
Renovation of factories REHE 58 1,724
2,401 6,550
Authorised, but not contracted for: BIEREERTY
Investment in the Jiangxi Project RERIEIER 38,610 38,610
Investment in the Indonesia Project RERHIEIEE 7,811 =
46,421 38,610

The Company did not have any other significant commitments at the
end of the reporting period (2013: Nil).

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The directors are the key management personnel of the Group.
Details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 8 to the financial

statements.

RI|ERR - AR AL EETH B AA
B(CZ—=F 8\

35. BEALIRS
EEAXEEITEERAS - WEHM
7 BRI R AT S E -

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BIEREE>EERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as accounts and bills receivables, other receivables, accounts
and bills payables, accrued liabilities and other payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The

AEENFESM T ARETSIRITEE
EkREFBRLEEEE - RFERIAZ
TRANRBEAEELENTES °
AEEEARUORRERE - B ESER
B BNERRERE  EtEEREME
NHRERBEMEREERARE TR
HEBRERES

AEEERMTAZIERRIIKEFER
B SNERRR RBEEZRARREERR

board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of % EEeERNTHREEEREEBAR

these risks and they are summarised below.

ZBER o W N XA o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. HEMEE>BEZRBE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk FI = = b
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates AREEAS TSN REHRA M FEBH
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings with REEZ TSN EA BRITEEEHA -
floating interest rates.
The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating interest rate AEBFHEENERZEEENEER
borrowings in order to manage its interest rate risk. The interest- FIERE - 5T EIRITIEE ReRBEE
bearing bank borrowings, and cash and cash equivalents are stated BIEBREBEKRAAR e cHE
at amortised cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate f o I BWA RS ERRRRIZE BEE
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to the income DEETFLER % -
statement as earned/incurred.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TREAREBEMESRETE K&
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, Eaf(RFEEEXE)HMNE 2 518A
of the Group's net profit (through the impact on floating rate RE B E BRI -
borrowings).
Group rEE
Increase in Decrease in
interest rate net profit
FZ I8N I
(basis points) HK$'000
(EEh) FAET
2014 —E-mE 100 3,396
2013 —T—=%F 100 3,876
Company AT
Increase in Decrease in
interest rate net profit
AZ=IE N IR
(basis points) HKS$'000
(&) FHT
2014 —E—UEF 100 2,172
2013 —E—=F 100 2,340

125 J



ﬁf 126

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited & 35 (B Z R BIR A A

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B RS R AR Y

1 (%)

(31 March 2014)
(Z2—mFE=A=+—81)

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BIEMEEBERBE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk FNEE [ B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise AREEEAZZZHEERR - GHRME
from a substantial portion of sales or purchases by operating units in HEKE QLA%EU%EJ)&/\EMLW
United States Dollars (“USS$”) and RMB. As the foreign currency risks BEEES mRBTHEETLHN BE
arising from the sales and purchases can be set off with each other EAZHMNER R A A FEHEY - ANEEE
given that the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US$, the Group EHEH ZIMNERBREM - REEKBE
believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is minimal. It is the policy EEAHRESETEE 2 FEBE - A
of the Group to continue maintaining the balance of its sales and m- ARFENBRARUAREAIIGEE
purchases in the same currency. However, as the functional currency MM AREB I BERERTIBITLER - K
of the PRC subsidiaries are RMB and the Group's financial statements ARETHE/(E)EeEELT A (H
are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation credit/ RE EXRSRERENELRE - A5E
(debit) to the exchange fluctuation reserve as a result of RMB KIS EEEEHM N B ARE - WIAA
appreciation/(depreciation). The majority of the Group’s operating R¥EHE
assets are located in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. AEEH HIJ]IE%FHEET—JM\I:;TFF PR
However, management monitors the foreign exchange exposures R BERESERIMNERKR - TERE
and will consider hedging the significant foreign currency exposures ERFE B P EAAIMNERE
should the need arise.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRINTAREERRREHRTELER
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB ZERFEH(FMEEMESHIBIIE) MY
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s AREEANz@RE(BHREEEERA
net profit (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and BERFEED) -
liabilities).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
exchange rate net profit
X EH b lb:=p iy
(FFE) OR)
HK$'000
FHT
2014 —E-0F
If HKS weakens against RMB BT HARBRE 5% 1,729
If HKS strengthens against RMB ST AREHE (5%) (1,729)
2013 —B-=F
If HKS weakens against RMB ST i AREEZE 5% 640
If HKS strengthens against RMB ST i AREHE (5%) (640)
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BEMREE>BERBE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk REBESER
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AEBEFRLCFERBESHE T AER
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its BEomEpcEE - ZEITAeZES/MT
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., accounts and bills BERerEE(WEKRERKREZE) ZFIH
receivables) and the projected cash flows from operations. EN A REESR B RETEA
The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding and AEEBBEAEBRITEE R EMIETT
flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank borrowings and HHREE - ’Ehﬁﬂzﬁ,tf tEREEE 2
other banking facilities. The directors have reviewed the Group's FNTE  EFCRILEENEEES
working capital and capital expenditure requirements and determined RERLTHFNK IW}%Z]KE BN EE KR
that the Group has no significant liquidity risk. The maturity profile of HRESEeRK - ~AEEemaERN RS
the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, HARIZ A AR N ZRAE Z D BERD
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was less than one R—4F o
year.
The loan agreements contain repayment on-demand clauses giving ERMEesSRITEEE KM TRERE
the banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at any time SKIEBER G - Bt - RITEERE
and therefore, the bank borrowings are classified as “on demand”. HHQEZJ: BiE | - BEAULGHR  EF
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that WARBZEEFRBRNR2EARFEERE
the loans will be called in its entirety within 12 months, and they %{faﬁ MEERAZSERBSRER
consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity REYZEREAREE - JLEH I E
dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made nAEERAR Tﬁ’éﬂ?ﬁ]’%#&t‘:ﬁt}ﬁaiﬁ
considering: the financial position of the Group and the Company at AR - AEB RARQRETERE
the date of approval of the financial statements; the Group’s and the o WEEABEASHURAER RAR
Company's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of AIAE S R IR ERE TR -
default, and the fact that the Group and the Company have made all
previously scheduled repayments on time.
The maturity profile of the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings RBEER - ZISEIE@%)%%%’UEEEEEEH
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual HETE 2T BIRITERE BB RN T
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
Group Company
rEE ¥ /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OF —T-=F ZB-QNE _"—T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT THERT FAT
Analysed into: DR
Within one year —F R 149,118 150,486 41,480 42,187
In the second year F_F 199,422 34,812 183,215 3,078
In the third to fourth years, FE=FEFMF
inclusive (RIEERME) = 217,375 = 201,155
348,540 402,673 224,695 246,420
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36.

37.

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other receivables and
accounts and bills receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with @ maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total current
assets divided by total current liabilities. The Group's policy is to keep
the current ratio above 1.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due to
the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs during the current year and
the reasons as detailed in note 2.2(ii), the accounting treatment and
presentation of certain items and balances in the financial statements
have been revised. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have
been made and certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
and restated to conform to the current year’s presentation and
accounting treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors of the Company on 27 June 2014.

36.

37.

38.
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